
NOTICE - VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a regular Committee of the Whole Meeting of the 

Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois will be held on Tuesday, August 16, 2022, 
beginning at 6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers, located in the Tinley Park Village Hall, 16250 South 
Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, Illinois 60477. 

 

THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER. 
2. ROLL CALL. 
3. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE 

WHOLE MEETING HELD ON AUGUST 3, 2022.  
4. CONSIDER AMENDMENT TO TITLE XIII CHAPTER 132 SECTION 23 (12)(C) 

VIDEO GAMING.  
5. CONSIDER AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE VILLAGE OF 

ROMEOVILLE FIRE ACADEMY. 
6. CONSIDER ESTABLISHING A RECAPTURE ORDINANCE FOR COSTS RELATED 

TO UTILITY EXTENSIONS AND A LIFT STATION SERVING THE AREA EAST 
OF LAGRANGE ROAD GENERALLY BETWEEN 179TH STREET AND 183RD 
STREET. 

7. CONSIDER VILLAGE STANDARDS TO ESTABLISH AND DEFINE THE 
ENGINEERING TEMPLATES AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR ALL UTILITY AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS IN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK. 

8. CONSIDER A CONTRACT WITH MCGILL CONSTRUCTION LLC FOR 2022 
MUNICIPAL PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENT. 

9. CONSIDER AN AGREEMENT WITH RIDDIFORD ROOFING COMPANY FOR 
THE PUBLIC WORKS GARAGE ROOF REPLACEMENT - 7890 183RD STREET. 

10. CONSIDER AND AGREEMENT WITH TORI CONSTRUCTION FOR THE FIRE 
STATION #48 ROOF REPLACEMENT – 9191 175TH STREET. 

11. CONSIDER A FINAL PAYOUT & CHANGE ORDER WITH MISFITS 
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY FOR THE STREAMBANK STABILIZATION 
PROJECT. 

12. CONSIDER CONTACT WITH H & H ELECTRIC INCORPORATED FOR THE LED 
LIGHTING PHASE 6 PROGRAM. 

13. CONSIDER PURCHASE ORDER FOR FURNITURE THROUGH THE OMNIA 
PARTNERS COOPERATIVE CONTRACT FROM WAREHOUSE DIRECT OFFICE 
INTERIORS FOR POLICE DEPARTMENT AND PUBLIC WORKS OFFICES. 

14. CONSIDER MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH EVE AIR MOBILITY. 
15. CONSIDER AN AMENDMENT TO TITLE III CHAPTER 32 RESIDENCY 

REQUIREMENTS OF COMMISSIONERS/COMMITTEE MEMBERS. 
16. CONSIDER A CONTRACT WITH NEOGOV. 
17. CONSIDER ANNUAL BENEFIT RENEWAL.  
18. RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC. 

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 

NANCY M. O’CONNOR, VILLAGE CLERK  



ROLL
CALL 



 
MINUTES 

Meeting of the Committee of the Whole 
 August 3, 2022 – 6:00 p.m. 
 Village Hall - Council Chambers 
 16250 S Oak Park Ave. 

Tinley Park, IL 60477 
 
Item #1 - At 6:00 p.m. the special meeting of the Committee of the Whole was called to order. 
 
Item #2 - Clerk O’Connor called the roll. Present and responding to roll call were the following: 
 
Members Present: M. Mueller, President Pro Tem 
   N. O’Connor, Village Clerk 
   W. Brady, Village Trustee 
   W. Brennan, Village Trustee 
   D. Galante, Village Trustee 
   D. Mahoney, Village Trustee 
   C. Sullivan, Village Trustee 
   M. Glotz, Village President    
 
Members Absent:   
    
Staff Present:  P. Carr, Village Manager 
   H. Lipman, Assistant Village Manager 
   M. Walsh, Police Chief 
   D. Adamski, Assistant Finance Director 
   S. Klotz, Fire Chief 
   K. Clarke, Community Development Director  
   C. Zemaitis, Assistant Public Works Director 
   D. Framke, Marketing Director 
   P. O’Grady, Village Attorney    
 
Others Present:    
    
Item #3 - CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
MEETING HELD JULY 19, 2022 – Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee 
Sullivan to approve the minutes of the Committee of the Whole meeting held on July 19, 2022. President 
Pro Tem Mueller asked if members of the Committee had any questions. There were none. Vote by roll 
call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Galante, Mahoney, Mueller, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. President 
Pro Tem Mueller declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #4 – CONSIDER A COOK COUNTY CLASS 7B REQUEST FOR MARRIOTT HOTELS -
RESIDENCE INN & COURTYARD – On February 5, 2019, the Village Board approved Ordinance 
2019-O-009 designating the area known as 179th and Lagrange Road as blighted. The blighted designation 
allows for current/future developers and businesses the ability to immediately access Cook County Class 
7 incentives with Village approval to attract investment in high vacancy and underdeveloped areas. The 
subject property is located within the designated blighted area outlined within the ordinance and is 
therefore eligible to apply for Class 7 incentives.  
 
Hardick Patel (Applicant) manager of Top Hospitality, LLC, plans to construct two hotels (Residence Inn 
& Courtyard) at the SEC of 183rd Street and Lagrange Road. The Class 7b will provide a 10% tax incentive 
for the first ten (10) years and 15% for years eleven (11) and twelve (12). 
 
President Pro Tem Mueller asked if members of the Committee had any questions. There were none. 
Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brennan to recommend a Cook County Class 



 
 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 
 
 

7b request for Marriott Hotels -Residence Inn & Courtyard be forwarded to the Village Board. Vote by 
roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Galante, Mahoney, Mueller, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. 
President Pro Tem Mueller declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #5 – CONSIDER PROPOSED SPECIAL SERVICE AREA (SSA) # 5- OAK RIDGE 
SUBDIVISION – The SSA is for the Oak Ridge Subdivision located at the southeast corner of Ridgeland 
Avenue and Oak Forest Avenue. The SSA is a protection measure for the Village in the event the 
Homeowner’s Association (HOA) does not maintain these common areas properly. The Village can step 
in and make the necessary improvements and levy a tax on the property owners. The SSA will remain 
dormant so long as the HOA maintains the common areas shown on their approved plans. 
 
President Pro Tem Mueller asked if members of the Committee had any questions. There were none. 
Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Sullivan to recommend the Proposed Special 
Service Area # 5- Oak Ridge Subdivision be forwarded to the Village Board. Vote by roll call. Ayes: 
Brady, Brennan, Galante, Mahoney, Mueller, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Pro Tem 
Mueller declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #6 – CONSIDER AGREEMENT WITH MUNICIPAL SERVICES CONSULTING FOR 
POLICE DEPARTMENT RADIO SYSTEM SIMULCAST PHASE 3 – Phase 3 includes installation 
of purchased equipment from Phase #2. The equipment consists of network gear, multiplex equipment, 
multicoupler equipment, UPS, and labor for the installation of the entire system as proposed in previous 
phases. Staff recommended the remaining equipment and installation by Municipal Services Consulting 
(MSC). 
 
President Pro Tem Mueller asked if members of the Committee had any questions. There were none. 
Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Mahoney to recommend an agreement with 
Municipal Services Consulting for Police Department Radio System Simulcast Phase 3 be 
forwarded to the Village Board. Vote by roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Galante, Mahoney, Mueller, 
Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Pro Tem Mueller declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #7 – CONSIDER A CONTRACT FOR THE POLICE FIRING RANGE RENOVATION 
WITH INTEGRAL CONSTRUCTION – This construction contract was advertised in accordance with 
state bidding laws and three (3) Bids were received and read publicly at 10:01 a.m. on Wednesday, June 
29th, 2022, with the Deputy Clerk, Facilities Superintendent, and FGM Architects present: 
 

Contractor As Read & Calculated Bid 
Integral Construction, Romeoville, IL  $ 249,200 
Czervik Construction, Mokena, IL  $ 308,000 
Construction Inc., Lombard, IL  $ 328,000 

 
Funding is available in the approved FY23 Capital Projects Budget. 
 

Budget Available   $ 218,000 
Lowest Responsible Bidder  $ 249,200 
Difference (Over Budget)  $  31,200 

 
Due to the increase in material pricing because of COVID-19, bids came in higher than expected. The 
Public Works Department and the Police Department management teams met on June 30, 2022, and 



 
 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 
 
 

mutually recommend the approved FY23 Paint Sally Port/Prisoner Cell Floors Project ($45,000) be 
deferred to allow these funds to be used for the Police Department Shooting Range Renovation Project 
shortage. 
 
President Pro Tem Mueller asked if members of the Committee had any questions. There were none. 
Motion was made by Trustee Brady, seconded by Trustee Mahoney to recommend a contract for the Police 
Firing Range Renovation with Integral Construction be forwarded to the Village Board. Vote by roll call. 
Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Galante, Mahoney, Mueller, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Pro 
Tem Mueller declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #8– CONSIDER A CONTRACT FOR OVERHEAD POWERLINE REMOVAL WITH 
COMED – The Village is coordinating the placement of the overhead power lines along 183rd Street in 
the north parkway in front of the Helipad/Fire Training Tower Facility and the Police Department. These 
are ComEd poles which appear to also be utilized by AT&T, Comcast, and Verizon. The preliminary work 
has been coordinated with the utility companies. Discussions as to where the proposed infrastructure will 
be placed which includes preferential alignments and above-grade equipment placement locations for 
items such as transformers, switch boxes, splice pits, structures, and pedestals were had. The various utility 
companies will require engineering deposits from the Village prior to starting their design. 
 
ComEd provided a Customer Work Agreement. The Agreement for $33,873 is required to be paid in full 
prior to ComEd proceeding with the design plans for the burial of the overhead dry utilities from the utility 
poles. 
 
Funding is budgeted with TIF dollars in the FY23 Capital Fund Budget (20-00-000-75814). 
 
President Pro Tem Mueller asked if members of the Committee had any questions. There were none. 
Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Mahoney to recommend a contract for 
overhead powerline removal with ComEd be forwarded to the Village Board. Vote by roll call. Ayes: 
Brady, Brennan, Galante, Mahoney, Mueller, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Pro Tem 
Mueller declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #9 CONSIDER THE ANNUAL CONTRACT RENEWAL OF CARTEGRAPH –– The 
Public Works Department utilizes Cartegraph Work Order Systems as its operating work order system 
allowing administrative staff to create requests for Public Works Maintenance Staff to execute. The system 
is vital to labor tracking, event tracking, asset management, task assignment, and report creation. 
 
The renewal cost is $72,800 for one (1) year of operation and includes access to the OMS work order 
system, user licensing, and 811 JULIE Integration. 
 
Trustee Brennan asked if there were any changes to the contract from last year. Colby Zemaitis, Assistant 
Public Works Director, stated it is the same. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brennan to recommend the annual contract 
renewal of Cartegraph be forwarded to the Village Board. Vote by roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, 
Galante, Mahoney, Mueller, Sullivan. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Pro Tem Mueller declared the 
motion carried. 
 
Item #10 – CONSIDER AMENDING TITLE III CHAPTER 32.064 ECONOMIC COMMERCIAL 
COMMISSION-MEMBERS-TERMS – The proposed Ordinance would amend Village residency 



 
 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 
 
 

requirements for the Economic and Commercial Commission to require Tinley Park citizenship for the 
Commission’s eleven (11) members and four (4) associate members. 
 
Trustee Galante asked if this was removing the residency requirement. President Pro Tem Muller stated 
this amendment would require the Commissioners reside in Tinley Park. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brennan to recommend he amendment of Title 
III Chapter 32.064 Economic Commercial Commission-Members-Terms be forwarded to the Village 
Board. Vote by roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Mahoney, Mueller, Sullivan. Nays: Galante. Absent: 
None. President Pro Tem Mueller declared the motion carried. 
 
Item #7 – RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC – 
President Pro Tem Mueller asked if there were any comments from the public. There were none. 

 
Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Brady, to adjourn the Committee of the 
Whole. Vote by roll call. Ayes: Brady, Brennan, Galante, Mahoney, Mueller, Sullivan. Nays: None. 
Absent: None. President Pro Tem Mueller declared the meeting adjourned at 6:16 p.m. 
 



 

 
 
 
Date:   August 8, 2022 
 
To: Village Board of Trustees 
   
From: Hannah Lipman, Assistant Village Manager 
 
Subject: Video Gaming – Number of Terminals (Large Struck Stop) 
 
Currently, the Village has two (2) different liquor/gaming license cateogries for truck stops. The 
Class UV License is a standard liquor and gaming license for a truck stop. The Class UV-2 License 
is similar to the UV License, except it allows for 24/7 video gaming. Currently, only the Gas N 
Wash located at 7451 183rd Street holds a Class UV-2 License.  
 
Under State statute and upon approval of the Illinois Gaming Board, esablishments classified as 
Large Truck Stops may have up to ten (10) video gaming terminals. This proposed code 
amendment would allow only for holders of a Class UV-2 liquor and gaming license, who also 
have approval from the Illinois Gaming Board (IGB) as a Large Truck Stop, to have up to ten (10) 
video gaming terminals. Locally, this would only impact one (1) establishment as mentioned 
above, which is in good standing with the Village, and would better algin with State staute.  

Interoffice   

Memo 



 
 

 Memo #22-113 
 

Date: August 10, 2022 
 

To: Pat Carr, Village Manager 
 

From: Stephen C. Klotz, Fire Chief Administrator  
 

Subject: IGA with the Village of Romeoville Fire Academy  
  
 
The recruitment of firefighters has become more of a challenge.  The Fire Department  
Administration has been working “outside of the box” to try other methods of hiring.  We 
normally hire certified firefighters but that pool has been getting a bit more challenging to 
get applicants. 
 
We would like to sign an IGA with the Village of Romeoville Fire Academy which would 
allow us to hire non-certified firefighters and put them through the Firefighter Basic 
Academy.  The great part of this agreement is that the classes for our firefighters will be 
held at our training tower, and some of our current members will be included in the 
instructor group.  This method of hiring will allow us to take Village residents that would 
like to become a firefighter and train them to the certification level.  
 
Please feel free to contact me with any questions you might have.  
 
        Respectfully,  
  
   
 
        Stephen C. Klotz,  
        Fire Chief Administrator  
 
SCK/mb   
 

Interoffice   

Memo 

Issued/Approved by:  Stephen C. Klotz,  
  Fire Chief Administrator 



 

 
 

 
Date: August 16, 2022 
 
To: Committee of the Whole 
 
CC:  Pat Carr, Village Manager 
  
         
From:         Kimberly Clarke, AICP  
         Community Development Director 
          
Subject:                            Recapture Ordinance for Lagrange Road and 183rd Street  

 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
As part of an economic development initiative, the Village is constructing the extension of utilities 
along the LaGrange Road (Rte 45) corridor at 183rd Street in the hopes of spurring development in 
the area.  Whenever a developer of property within the village or the Village itself proposes to 
install or construct any public improvement which will benefit adjacent or other properties within 
the village, the president and board of trustees may, by ordinance, provide for the recapture of part 
of the cost of such public improvement.   
 
THE PROJECT 
 
The project is providing public utility service to the parcels of land between 179th Street and 183rd 
Street, and between LaGrange Road and 94th Street. Sanitary sewer will connect to the termini of the 
existing sanitary sewer at the southwest corner of 179th Street and Chopin Drive. The watermain will 
tie to the existing watermain at the northeast corner of 96th Avenue in front of the Arby’s.  A lift station 
will be constructed on a permanent easement granted by Loyola Medicine near the northwest corner 
of 183rd Street and the old LaGrange Road R.O.W (96th Avenue).  The total cost for the project is 
estimated at $2.4 million dollars.  Staff has provided a map showing which properties will benefit 
from these utilities and have outlined their proportionate share of recapture based on the acreage of 
the property to to be developed.  
 
  
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends adopting this ordinance at the Village Board meeting later this evening. 
 
 
 
 

Interoffice 

Memo 



 

Map of Properties Subject to Recapture Ordinance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Asfad  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Rec  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

kljf 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 
 
 
Date: August 9, 2022 
 
To: Pat Carr – Village Manager 

Hannah Lipman – Asst Village Manager 
John Urbanski, Public Works Director 

 
From: Colby Zemaitis, PE, CFM – Asst. Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Adoption of Village Standards 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
Presented for Committee of the Whole/Village Board Meeting consideration and possible action: 
 
Description:  
The purpose of Village Standards is to establish and define the engineering templates and specifications 
for all improvements projects done within the Village.  
 
The Public Works Department has prepared standards and specifications for the construction of all public 
improvements in the Village. The Standards are designed to assure long life, good performance and 
minimum maintenance to roadways, utilities and other items that are the responsibility of the Village to own 
and maintain. These Standards help ensure the general high-quality image, appearance, and identity is 
being maintained. It shall be unlawful for any person to construct, reconstruct or demolish any public 
improvement in the Village except in compliance with these standards and specifications. Any deviation 
from the Standards must first be approved by the Public Works Director.  
 
Improvement projects occurring throughout the Village begin with design plans and specification booklets 
for contractors and developers to follow. During the design phase, engineers and developers request from 
the Public Works Departments a copy of the standards for which to design roadways, storm sewers, 
sanitary sewers, watermains, street lighting and other minor items like sidewalks and bike paths. These 
standards are inserted in the plans and give the contractor the needed information to bid the project and 
construct the work to the requirements of the Village. With these standards it enables all items to be 
constructed the same, provide the necessary strength and stability as well as simply the 
repair/replacement process for the Village.   
 
These Standards may be amended from time to time as new technologies and practices are 
developed and/or the experience gained in the use of these Standards indicates a need for revision. 
The Public Works Department shall evaluate the effectiveness of the Standards and make 
amendments, as needed. The effective date of any amendments to the Standards shall be identified 
on each detail/specification as it is updated. Any construction projects with a final approved bid design 
before the effective date of publication shall be grandfathered into the previous version of the 
Standards, provided that the improvements have been constructed within two (2) years from the date 
of approval. If the improvements have not been constructed within two (2) years, the applicant will be 
required to resubmit the application in accordance with the requirements of the most recent version of 
the Standards. These Standards shall apply to all public improvements within the Village, except where 
the Village’s jurisdiction is superseded by the State, the County, or by another jurisdiction. 
 
Staff Direction Request:  

1. Approve signature of this Ordinance to approve the adoption of these Village Standards. 
 
Attachment: 

1. Village Standards. 

Interoffice    

Memo    

































































































































































































































 

 
 

 

Date: August 8, 2022 
 

To: Pat Carr – Village Manager 
 Hannah Lipman – Asst. Village Manager 

John Urbanski, Public Works Director 
 

From: Arlan Schattke, PE – Village Engineer 
 

Subject: Contract Award – 2022 Municipal Parking Lot Improvements 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Prepared for the Committee of the Whole and Village Board Meeting for consideration and possible action. 
 

Description: This work consists of removal and replacement of hot-mix asphalt surface course, various 
pavement patches, concrete curb and gutter removal and replacement, concrete driveway removal and 
replacement, concrete sidewalk removal and replacement, pavement markings, and all incidental and 
collateral work necessary. The 2022 Improvement locations are the 80th Ave Metra Station Lot (North of 
Timber Dr, West Half), Municipal Lot behind 17200 Oak Park Ave, Fire Station #49, Police Station, Public 
Works Facility, and Fire Station #46. 
 

Seven (7) bids were received and publicly read on August 8, 2022. The Village Clerk, Assistant Public 
Works Director, Village Engineer, Engineering Project Manager and Various Contractor Representatives 
were present at the bid opening. The bid results are below and the bid tabulation is attached. The lowest, 
responsible bidder is McGill Construction in the amount of $382,978.57. 
 

 Contractor Location Base Bid Total 
 McGill Construction LLC Frankfort, IL $382,978.57 
 Gallagher Asphalt Thornton, IL $486,568.32 
 D Construction Coal City, IL $494,767.02 
 Matthew Paving Cicero, IL $535,133.41 
 Abbey Paving Aurora, IL $556,067.70 
 Austin Tyler Construction Elwood, IL $575,815.75 
 Iroquois Paving Watseka, IL $621,806.17 
 Engineer’s Estimate  $483,482.30 
 

Staff has reviewed and verified the bids and recommends award of the project to the lowest responsible, 
qualified bidder, McGill Construction. McGill Construction completed similar projects in the past, employs 
union workers, and met the bid proposal requirements. McGill Construction has completed the Village’s 
Municipal Parking Lot Improvement project last year with satisfactory work.  
 

Budget / Finance:  Funding is budgeted for in the FY23 Capital Program. 
 

 Budget Available: $675,000.00 
 Lowest Responsible Bidder: $382,978.57 
 Contingency Amount (≈15%): $55,000.00 
 Difference: $237,021.43 Under Budget 
 

Staff Direction Request:  
1. Approve low bid and award the project to McGill Construction LLC in the amount of $437,978.57. 
2. Direct Staff as necessary. 

 

Attachment:  
1. Bid Tab dated August 8, 2022. 

Interoffice    

Memo    



2022 Municipal Parking Lot Improvements

Owner: Village of Tinley Park

Solicitor: Tinley Park IL, Village of

8/8/2022 10:00 AM CDT

Line Item Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

1 Earth Excavation Cu Yd 55.0           100.00$  $5,500.00 $35.00 $1,925.00 75.00$    $4,125.00 200.00$     $11,000.00 100.00$  $5,500.00 115.00$  $6,325.00 78.00$        $4,290.00 105.00$     $5,775.00

2 Inlet Filters Each 5.0             $200.00 $1,000.00 $235.00 $1,175.00 300.00$  $1,500.00 500.00$     $2,500.00 400.00$  $2,000.00 115.00$  $575.00 100.00$     $500.00 0.01$          $0.05

3 Aggregate Base Course, Type B, 4" Sq Yd 219.0         $30.00 $6,570.00 $8.50 $1,861.50 5.00$       $1,095.00 25.00$        $5,475.00 6.00$       $1,314.00 8.50$       $1,861.50 31.00$        $6,789.00 8.50$          $1,861.50

4 Hot-Mix Asphalt Surface Course, Mix "D", N50 Ton 2,323.0      $105.00 $243,915.00 $86.10 $200,010.30 107.50$  $249,722.50 101.00$     $234,623.00 118.60$  $275,507.80 113.65$  $264,008.95 114.00$     $264,822.00 120.00$     $278,760.00

5 Bituminous Materials (Tack Coat) Pound 14,002.0    $0.10 $1,400.20 $0.01 $140.02 0.01$       $140.02 0.01$          $140.02 0.01$       $140.02 0.10$       $1,400.20 0.75$          $10,501.50 0.01$          $140.02

6 Portland Cement Concrete Driveway Pavement, 8 Inch Sq Yd 581.0         $90.00 $52,290.00 $79.50 $46,189.50 90.00$    $52,290.00 110.00$     $63,910.00 130.00$  $75,530.00 131.00$  $76,111.00 115.00$     $66,815.00 135.00$     $78,435.00

7 Portland Cement Concrete Sidewalk, 5 Inch Sq Ft 1,165.0      $15.00 $17,475.00 $7.00 $8,155.00 9.50$       $11,067.50 10.00$        $11,650.00 10.00$    $11,650.00 17.00$    $19,805.00 11.00$        $12,815.00 14.80$        $17,242.00

8 Hot-Mix Asphalt Surface Removal Sq Yd 20,740.0    $3.75 $77,775.00 $3.65 $75,701.00 3.25$       $67,405.00 3.50$          $72,590.00 4.25$       $88,145.00 5.05$       $104,737.00 6.00$          $124,440.00 4.55$          $94,367.00

9 Driveway Pavement Removal Sq Yd 473.0         $20.00 $9,460.00 $10.00 $4,730.00 30.00$    $14,190.00 20.00$        $9,460.00 20.00$    $9,460.00 21.50$    $10,169.50 18.50$        $8,750.50 16.00$        $7,568.00

10 Sidewalk Removal Sq Ft 1,130.0      $10.00 $11,300.00 $1.00 $1,130.00 4.00$       $4,520.00 5.00$          $5,650.00 2.25$       $2,542.50 2.00$       $2,260.00 3.40$          $3,842.00 5.25$          $5,932.50

11 Class D Patches, 2 Inch Sq Yd 415.0         $25.00 $10,375.00 $11.25 $4,668.75 30.00$    $12,450.00 30.00$        $12,450.00 23.00$    $9,545.00 19.50$    $8,092.50 37.00$        $15,355.00 55.00$        $22,825.00

12 Class D Patches, 6 Inch Sq Yd 9.0             $80.00 $720.00 $36.00 $324.00 200.00$  $1,800.00 300.00$     $2,700.00 140.00$  $1,260.00 115.00$  $1,035.00 111.00$     $999.00 250.00$     $2,250.00

13 Sanitary Manholes to be Adjusted Each 5.0             $800.00 $4,000.00 $1,200.00 $6,000.00 700.00$  $3,500.00 1,500.00$  $7,500.00 750.00$  $3,750.00 550.00$  $2,750.00 1,103.00$  $5,515.00 1,025.00$  $5,125.00

14 Frames and Lids to be Adjusted (Special) Each 5.0             $500.00 $2,500.00 $1,200.00 $6,000.00 525.00$  $2,625.00 100.00$     $500.00 750.00$  $3,750.00 550.00$  $2,750.00 1,240.00$  $6,200.00 415.00$     $2,075.00

15

Combination Concrete Curb and Gutter Removal and 

Replacement Foot 356.0         $50.00 $17,800.00 $35.00 $12,460.00 95.00$    $33,820.00 60.00$        $21,360.00 55.00$    $19,580.00 67.60$    $24,065.60 54.00$        $19,224.00 205.00$     $72,980.00

16 Modified Urethane Pavement Marking - L&S Sq Ft 58.0           $8.00 $464.00 $30.00 $1,740.00 7.50$       $435.00 8.00$          $464.00 7.30$       $423.40 8.05$       $466.90 7.00$          $406.00 7.35$          $426.30

17 Modified Urethane Pavement Marking - Line 4" Foot 16,829.0    $0.90 $15,146.10 $0.50 $8,414.50 1.20$       $20,194.80 1.30$          $21,877.70 1.16$       $19,521.64 1.35$       $22,719.15 1.00$          $16,829.00 1.20$          $20,194.80

18 Modified Urethane Pavement Marking - Line 6" Foot 913.0         $2.00 $1,826.00 $1.00 $913.00 2.00$       $1,826.00 2.10$          $1,917.30 1.85$       $1,689.05 1.95$       $1,780.35 1.75$          $1,597.75 1.85$          $1,689.05

19 Modified Urethane Pavement Marking - Line 12" Foot 52.0           $3.50 $182.00 $2.00 $104.00 3.75$       $195.00 4.00$          $208.00 4.00$       $208.00 4.05$       $210.60 3.50$          $182.00 3.65$          $189.80

20 Modified Urethane Pavement Marking - Line 24" Foot 149.0         $6.00 $894.00 $3.00 $447.00 7.50$       $1,117.50 8.00$          $1,192.00 8.00$       $1,192.00 8.05$       $1,199.45 7.00$          $1,043.00 7.35$          $1,095.15

21 Remove and Reinstall Existing Parking Blocks Each 25.0           $100.00 $2,500.00 $20.00 $500.00 50.00$    $1,250.00 200.00$     $5,000.00 45.00$    $1,125.00 90.00$    $2,250.00 170.00$     $4,250.00 50.00$        $1,250.00

22 Parkway Restoration Sq Yd 13.0           $30.00 $390.00 $30.00 $390.00 100.00$  $1,300.00 200.00$     $2,600.00 100.00$  $1,300.00 115.00$  $1,495.00 50.00$        $650.00 125.00$     $1,625.00

As Read Total: $384,238.27 $486,568.32 $494,767.02 $535,133.41 $556,067.70 $575,815.75 $621,806.17

Corrected Total: $483,482.30 $382,978.57 $486,568.32 $494,767.02 $535,133.41 $556,067.70 $575,815.75 $621,806.17

Austin Tyler Construction Iroquois Paving

LOW BID

Matthew Paving Abbey PavingGallagher AsphaltEngineer Estimate McGill Construction D Construction



 

 
 
Date: August 10, 2022 
 

To: Pat Carr, Village Manager 
Hannah Lipman, Assistant Village Manager  

 

From: Terry Lusby, Jr., Facilities & Fleet Superintendent  
 

Subject:  Roof Replacement Project - Public Works Garage (rear East half) 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Presented at the Committee of the Whole and Village Board meetings for consideration and possible 
action. 
 

Description:   
Public Works requests consideration and possible action by the Village Board to award the bid and 
contract work as set forth in the bid documents established by Public Works and Industrial Roofing 
Services Inc. 
 

Background: 
This construction contract was advertised in accordance with state bidding laws and six (6) Bids were 
received and read publicly on Wednesday, July 20th, 2022, at 10:01AM by the Deputy Clerk with the 
Facilities Superintendent and Industrial Roofing Services present and received as follows: 
 

Contractor As Read & Calculated Bid 
Riddiford Roofing Co., Arlington Heights, IL  $ 193,050 
Adler Roofing Inc, Joliet, IL $ 229,940 
DCG Roofing Solutions Inc, Melrose Park, IL $ 245,650 
L Marshall Roofing, Glenview, IL  $ 256,000 
Knickerbocker Roofing, Harvey, IL $ 275,500 
Tori Construction Inc, Alsip, IL $ 422,647 

 

Budget / Finance:   
Funding is available in the approved FY23 Capital Projects Budget: 

 

Budget Available $ 180,000 
Lowest Responsible Bidder $ 193,050 
Difference (Over Budget) $ 13,050 

 

Collected bids came in higher than expected due to surges in material pricing because of the COVID-19 
pandemic ramifications. However, our lowest bidder for the Fire Station #48 Roof Replacement project 
came in under budget by $52,100, management recommend we utilize some of those funds towards the 
Public Works Garage Roof Replacement Project shortage. 
 

Staff Direction Request: 
1. Approve service contract with Riddiford Roofing Co., of Arlington Heights, IL for the Public Works 

Garage Roof Replacement Project as estimated in the amount of $193,050.  
2. Direct staff as necessary.  

 

Attachment: 
1. Industrial Roofing Services concurring letter of recommendation. 
2. Tabulation of bids spreadsheet. 
3. Satellite view with highlighted roof area. 

Interoffice   

Memo 



 

 

 IRS I R S ndustrial oofing ervices, Inc. 
13000 West Silver Spring Drive 

Butler, Wisconsin  53007 
 Phone: (262) 432-0500 

Fax: (262) 432-0504 
www.irsroof.com 

 "Asset Management Consultants" 

 
 
 July 29, 2022  
 
 
 
Mr. Terry Lusby, Jr. 
Village of Tinley Park 
7980 W 183rd Street 
Tinley Park, IL  60477 
 
SUBJECT: Public Works Garage Roof Replacement 
 7980 W 183rd Street  
 Tinley Park, IL 
 IRS Job No. 17978 
 
Dear Mr. Lusby, Jr.: 
 
Bids for the above referenced project were opened on July 20, 2022.  Six (6) contractors submitted bids.  
Total Base Bids, including the $20,000.00 in Allowances, ranged from $193,050.00 to $422,647.00.   
 
It is recommended that you accept the low Total Base Bid from G.E. Riddiford Company, Inc., in the 
amount of $193,050.00.   
 
If you should have any questions regarding the above, please feel free to contact me. 
 

Sincerely yours, 
INDUSTRIAL ROOFING SERVICES, INC. 

Dave Angove  
Dave Angove  
Project Manager 
 
 





























 

 
 
 
Date: August 10, 2022 
 
To: Pat Carr, Village Manager 

Hannah Lipman, Assistant Village Manager  
   
From: Terry Lusby, Jr., Facilities & Fleet Superintendent  
 
Subject:  Roof Replacement Project – Fire Station #48 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Presented at the Committee of the Whole and Village Board meetings for consideration and possible 
action. 
 
Description:   
Public Works requests consideration and possible action by the Village Board to award the bid and 
contract work as set forth in the bid documents established by Public Works and Industrial Roofing 
Services Inc.  
 
Background: 
This construction contract was advertised in accordance with state bidding laws and seven (7) Bids were 
received and read publicly on Wednesday, July 20th, 2022, at 10:01AM by the Deputy Clerk with the 
Facilities Superintendent and Industrial Roofing Services present and received as follows: 
 

Contractor As Read & Calculated Bid 
Tori Construction Inc, Alsip, IL $ 163,900 
L Marshall Roofing, Glenview, IL $ 184,000 
Adler Roofing Inc, Joliet, IL $ 185,350 
Knickerbocker Roofing, Harvey, IL $ 194,900 
J & F Chiattello Inc, Dyer, IN $ 197,023 
DCG Roofing Solutions Inc, Melrose Park, IL $ 208,800 
Riddiford Roofing Co, Arlington Heights, IL $ 222,900 

 
Budget / Finance: 

Funding is available in the approved FY23 Capital Projects Budget: 
 
Budget Available $ 216,000 
Lowest Responsible Bidder $ 163,900 
Difference (Under Budget) $ 52,100 

 
 
Staff Direction Request: 

1. Approve service contract with Tori Construction, of Alsip, IL for the Public Works Roof 
Replacement Project as estimated in the amount of $163,900.  

2. Direct staff as necessary.  
 

Attachment: 
1. Industrial Roofing Services concurring letter of recommendation. 
2. Tabulation of bids spreadsheet. 

Interoffice   

Memo 



 

 

 IRS I R S ndustrial oofing ervices, Inc. 
13000 West Silver Spring Drive 

Butler, Wisconsin  53007 
 Phone: (262) 432-0500 

Fax: (262) 432-0504 
www.irsroof.com 

 "Asset Management Consultants" 

 
 
 July 29, 2022  
 
 
 
Mr. Terry Lusby, Jr. 
Village of Tinley Park 
7980 W 183rd Street 
Tinley Park, IL  60477 
 
SUBJECT: Fire Station #48 Roof Replacement 
 9191 W 175th Street  
 Tinley Park, IL 
 IRS Job No. 17989 
 
Dear Mr. Lusby, Jr.: 
 
Bids for the above referenced project were opened on July 20, 2022.  Seven (7) contractors submitted 
bids.  Total Base Bids, including the $20,000.00 in Allowances, ranged from $163,900.00 to 
$222,900.00.   
 
It is recommended that you accept the low Total Base Bid from Tori Construction, LLC, in the amount of 
$163,900.00.   
 
If you should have any questions regarding the above, please feel free to contact me. 
 

Sincerely yours, 
INDUSTRIAL ROOFING SERVICES, INC. 

Dave Angove  
Dave Angove  
Project Manager 
 
 





 

 
 
 

Date: August 10, 2022 
 

To: Pat Carr – Village Manager 
 Hannah Lipman – Asst. Village Manager 

John Urbanski - Public Works Director 
 

From: Colby C. Zemaitis, PE, CFM – Assistant Public Works Director 
 

Subject: Streambank Stabilization Project – Final Payout Request and Change Order Summary 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Prepared for the Committee of the Whole and Village Board Meeting for consideration and possible action. 
 

Description:  The Village received funding and entered into an IGA with the Metropolitan Water 
Reclamation District of Greater Chicago (MWRD) for streambank stabilization and maintenance of the 
Midlothian Creek back in the Spring of 2020.   
 

The plans and specifications were prepared by MWRD and entailed streambank stabilization of the 
Midlothian Creek between 66th Court and Hickory Street and creekbank near Scott Court along with 
establishing and maintaining the vegetation to prevent future erosion and public safety issues. 
 

The total project cost was $984,000 with the District providing $866,500 and the Village providing 
$117,500. The overall project cost totaled $1,084,595.00, which totaled $100,595 (9.27%) in change 
orders. The change order breakdown is attached and the justification for the additional work is as follows: 
 

a. The concrete block wall design was prepared approximately two (2) years prior to construction. 
Between the time the design was prepared and the construction started, it became evident that 
approximatley 44 feet of additional streambank was in need of repair to avoid future bank 
failures during or after the completion of the project. 

b. The soil borings collected during the design phase were in various locations along the creek 
bed. Once the creek bed, debris and other rocks and sut was removed during construction, it 
became apparent that the bedrock was an additional 6”-8” lower along the streambank were 
the concrete block wall was to be placed. With the additonal depth in order to place the 
concrete blocks directly on the bedrock, an additonial row of concrete blocks was required to 
be installed at the top of the wall in order to match or extend above the high water level (HWL) 
of the creek during heavy storms and prevent the creek flow from overtopping the block wall. 

c. The project required the existing Com Ed transformer to be raised and/or relocated. The 
original location of the transformer was directly over the top of the existing storm sewer pipe 
which drained the existing residential drainage swale up to Barbara Avenue. Due to the delay 
in Com Ed relocating the transformer, an additional structure, pipe and restoration was required 
to complete the drainage repairs for the project. 
 

Due to legal fees, $2,000.77 is being deducted from the final payment amount to Misfits. 
 

Staff Direction Request:   
1. Approve Change Request and Final Pay Request in the amount of $253,154.23 to Misfits 

Construction Company. 
2. Direct Staff as necessary. 

 

Attachments: 
1. Pay Request #6 (Final) Memo from Robinson Engineering 
2. Final Waiver of Lien and Contractor’s Affidavit 
3. Final Billing Spreadsheet 

Interoffice       

Memo            



Van Calombaris, PE 

Direct Line: (815) 412-2014 

Email: vcalombaris@reltd.com  

 

 

 
 

 
 
July 27, 2022              Project 20-R0382 
 
Village of Tinley Park 
16250 South Oak Park Avenue 
Tinley Park, Illinois 60477 
 
Attn: Finance Department 
 

RE:  Streambank Stabilization Improvements 

 6th Payout Request (Final) 

  

Enclosed herewith please find invoice 1921004-06 dated December 31, 2021 and a final waiver of lien from 
Misfits Construction Company for work completed on the above referenced project. We have reviewed the 
work and find that, in our best judgment, it is in substantial compliance with the plans and specifications.  The 
final waiver of lien has also been reviewed and has been found satisfactory.  Certified payrolls received to 
date are also attached with the invoice. 
 
We, therefore, recommend that Misfits Construction Company is entitled to payment of Two Hundred Fifty-
Three Thousand, Seventy-Eight Dollars and No Cents as summarized below: 
 
  Total Earned to Date .............................................................................. $1,084,595.00 
   Less Previous Payments ......................................................................... $829,440.00 
   Less Amount Owed for Legal Fees……………………………………………..$2,077.00 
 Amount Due this Estimate #6 (Final) ..................................................... $253,078.00 
 
Respectfully yours, 
ROBINSON ENGINEERING, LTD. 
 
 
 
 
Van Calombaris, PE      
Village Engineering Consultant 
vc/ pc 

R:\2020-2024\2020\20-R0382.TP\Payouts\PAYOUT 6 LETTER - Final.docx 

 
xc: Misfits Construction Company via e-mail   
 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 

____________________________________ 

Colby Zemaitis, PE, CFM, Village Engineer  







St
re

am
ba

nk
 S

ta
bi

liz
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t o

n 
M

id
lo

th
ia

n 
C

re
ek

FI
N

A
L 

BI
LL

IN
G

C
on

tr
ac

to
r :

 M
isf

its
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
om

pa
ny

33
3 

S.
 W

ab
as

h 
A

ve
., 

St
e 2

70
0

C
hi

ca
go

, I
L 

 6
06

04

U
ni

t P
ric

e
To

ta
l

A
C

os
t P

ro
po

sa
l A

1.
00

   
   

   
   

 
LS

32
4,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

32
4,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

 
0.

10
   

   
   

   
   

  
LS

32
,4

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
1.

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
LS

32
4,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
LS

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
B

C
os

t P
ro

po
sa

l B
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

B
.a

St
at

io
n:

 1
0+

00
 to

 1
0+

99
.9

9
1.

00
   

   
   

   
 

LS
10

0,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
10

0,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

LS
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

LS
10

0,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

LS
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

B
.b

St
at

io
n:

 1
1+

00
 to

 1
1+

99
.9

9
1.

00
   

   
   

   
 

LS
10

0,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
10

0,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

LS
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

LS
10

0,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

LS
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

B
.c

St
at

io
n:

 1
2+

00
 to

 1
2+

99
.9

9
1.

00
   

   
   

   
 

LS
10

0,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
10

0,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

LS
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

LS
10

0,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

LS
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

B
.d

St
at

io
n:

 1
3+

00
 to

 1
3+

99
.9

9
1.

00
   

   
   

   
 

LS
50

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

50
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
LS

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
LS

50
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
LS

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
B

.e
St

at
io

n:
 1

4+
00

 to
 1

4+
90

.0
2

1.
00

   
   

   
   

 
LS

75
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
75

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

LS
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

LS
75

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

LS
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
C

os
t P

ro
po

sa
l C

1.
00

   
   

   
   

 
LS

20
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

20
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
LS

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
LS

20
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
LS

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
D

D
eb

ris
 &

 S
oi

l C
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n 

A
llo

w
an

ce
 It

em
1.

00
   

   
   

   
 

LS
30

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

30
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
LS

30
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
1.

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
LS

30
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
LS

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
C

O
-0

1
A

dd
iti

on
al

 4
4 

LF
 C

on
cr

et
e 

B
lo

ck
 W

al
l

1.
00

   
   

   
   

 
LS

62
,5

52
.5

0
$ 

   
   

  
62

,5
52

.5
0

$ 
   

   
   

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

LS
62

,5
52

.5
0

$ 
   

   
   

1.
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

LS
62

,5
52

.5
0

$ 
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

LS
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
O

-0
2

A
dd

iti
on

al
 2

 ro
w

s o
f C

on
cr

et
e 

B
lo

ck
 W

al
l

1.
00

   
   

   
   

 
LS

22
,8

97
.5

0
$ 

   
   

  
22

,8
97

.5
0

$ 
   

   
   

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

LS
22

,8
97

.5
0

$ 
   

   
   

1.
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

LS
22

,8
97

.5
0

$ 
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

LS
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
O

-0
3

U
nf

or
es

ee
n 

C
on

di
tio

n 
- 1

5"
 S

to
rm

 S
ew

er
1.

00
   

   
   

   
 

LS
20

,5
70

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

20
,5

70
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
LS

20
,5

70
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
1.

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
LS

20
,5

70
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
LS

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
C

O
-0

4
R

es
to

ra
tio

n 
of

 a
re

a 
D

is
tu

rb
ed

 b
y 

C
om

ED
1.

00
   

   
   

   
 

LS
95

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

95
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
LS

95
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1.

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
LS

95
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
LS

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
C

O
-0

5
R

es
to

ra
tio

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
St

or
m

 S
ew

er
 P

ip
es

1.
00

   
   

   
   

 
LS

2,
33

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

33
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

LS
2,

33
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

1.
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

LS
2,

33
5.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

LS
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
O

06
D

is
po

sa
l o

f E
xc

es
s E

ar
th

 E
xc

av
at

io
n

1.
00

   
   

   
   

 
LS

21
,2

90
.0

0
$ 

   
   

  
21

,2
90

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

LS
21

,2
90

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

1.
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

LS
21

,2
90

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

LS
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

D
eb

ris
 &

 S
oi

l C
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n 

A
llo

w
an

ce
 It

em
(1

.0
0)

   
   

   
  

LS
30

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

(3
0,

00
0.

00
)

$ 
   

   
  

(1
.0

0)
   

   
   

   
   

 
LS

(3
0,

00
0.

00
)

$ 
   

   
  

(1
.0

00
)

   
   

   
   

  
LS

(3
0,

00
0.

00
)

$ 
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

LS
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l :
98

4,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
 

To
ta

l :
16

2,
99

5.
00

$ 
   

   
 

To
ta

l :
1,

08
4,

59
5.

00
$ 

   
 

To
ta

l :
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l :
10

0,
59

5.
00

$ 
   

   
 

R
et

ai
na

ge
10

%
 : 

(9
2,

16
0.

00
)

$ 
   

   
  

R
et

ai
na

ge
10

%
 : 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5%
 : 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5%

 : 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l :
1,

08
4,

59
5.

00
$ 

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
To

ta
l L

es
s R

et
ai

na
ge

 : 
25

5,
15

5.
00

$ 
   

   
 

To
ta

l L
es

s R
et

ai
na

ge
 : 

1,
08

4,
59

5.
00

$ 
   

 

In
vo

ic
ed

 to
 D

at
e 

: 
92

1,
60

0.
00

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
R

et
ai

na
ge

 to
 D

at
e 

: 
92

,1
60

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

To
ta

l R
et

ai
na

ge
:

To
ta

l T
o 

C
om

pl
et

e:

C
O

ST
 T

O
 C

O
M

PL
ET

E
C

O
ST

 T
O

 D
A

TE

R
ev

is
ed

 C
on

tra
ct

O
rig

in
al

 C
on

tra
ct

C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
s

PA
Y

 
IT

EM
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
Q

ua
nt

ity
C

O
N

TR
A

C
T

To
ta

l R
et

ai
na

ge
 : 

IN
V

O
IC

E 
N

O
. 1

92
10

04
-0

6
PA

Y
 E

ST
IM

A
TE

 N
O

. 0
6

©
20

19
 M

is
fi

ts
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
om

p
a

ny
1 

of
 1

12
/2

3/
20

21
R

ev
. 0

0



 

 
 
 
Date: August 10, 2022 
 
To: Pat Carr, Village Manager 

Hannah Lipman, Assistant Village Manager 
 
From: Terry Lusby, Jr., Facilities & Fleet Superintendent  
 
Subject:  LED Street Lighting Replacement - Phase 6 Project Award/Renewal (Year 2 of 3) 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
Presented at the Committee of the Whole and Village Board meetings for consideration and possible 
action: 
Scope of Work:   
Currently Public Works has completed Phases One thru Five of the LED Street Lighting Replacement 
Project in FY 2017 Thru 2021, which includes approximately 2,271 streetlights. This LED Street 
Lighting Replacement Project will continue to benefit the village in multiple ways. This service contract 
is a renewal to provide all applicable labor and materials to replace/retrofit new approximately 300 
new LED light heads from existing High Pressure Sodium/Metal Halide/Mercury light heads within the 
specified areas of the Phase 6 (Between 175th – 186th and Old Lagrange – 80th Ave).  
 
Description:   
Public Works is recommending the extension of our current contract for an additional year for LED 
Street Lighting Replacement. The contract has the option of two (2), one (1) year renewals. This 
would be the first (1st) extension of the contract. The past year H & H Electric, Inc. has proven to be a 
professional and reliable contractor with reasonable rates. 

 
Budget / Finance:   

Funding is available in the approved FY23 Capital Projects Budget: 
 
Budget Available $400,000 
Anticipated Costs $364,969 
Difference (Under Budget) $35,031 

 
 
Staff Direction Request: 

1. Approve the second (2nd) contract extension with H & H Electric Inc., of Franklin Park, IL for 
the LED Street Lighting Replacement - Phase 6 Project as estimated in the following 
amount of $364,969. 

2. Direct staff as necessary.  
 

Staff Direction Request: 
1. Christopher Burke Engineering Letter of Recommendation. 
 

Interoffice   

Memo 



  

August 9, 2022 
 
 
Village of Tinley Park 
16250 South Oak Park Avenue 
Tinley Park, IL 60477 
 
Attention: Mr. Terry Lusby 
   
Subject: Bid Review 
  LED Street Lighting Replacement – Phase 6a 
  Village of Tinley Park 
  (CBBEL Project No. 16-0373.0003C) 
 
 
Dear Terry: 
 
H & H Electric Company provided the attached proposal for work related to removal of 
existing HID luminaires and furnishing and installing LED luminaires. Per the contract 
awarded in November 2021, the Village may extend the existing agreement with H & H 
Electric for 3 years.  
 
CBBEL recommends that the Village award a contract in the amount of $364,969.10 to H 
& H Electric Company of Franklin Park, Illinois for the subject project. H & H Electric 
Company completed the previous LED lighting contract with the Village and performed 
satisfactorily. 
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.  
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
John P. Caruso, PE 
Head, Mechanical/Electrical Department 
 
 
JPC/pjb 
 
N TINLEYPARK\160373.00003C\ADMIN\L1.080922.docx 



 

 
 
 
Date: August 10, 2022 
 
To: Pat Carr, Village Manager 
 Hannah Lipman, Assistant Village Manager 
 John Urbanski, Public Works Director 
 
From:  Terry Lusby, Jr., Facilities & Fleet Superintendent 
 
Subject: Furniture Purchase - Police Station/Public Works Offices 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
Presented at the Committee of the Whole and Village Board meetings for consideration and possible 
action: 
 
Description:  Approve the furniture purchase for the Police Station/Public Works that is valued over 
$20,000. 
 
Background:  The current office furniture in the Police Station/Investigations area is not adequate for 
the current and future staffing levels. Additionally, the office furniture in the Public Works Foremen’s 
office is over 15 years old and both spaces (PD & PW offices) need to be renovated to maximize 
spacing for safety, organization, and employee morale. Staff is requesting authorization to purchase 
new office furniture through the OMNIA Partners Cooperative contract (#R192007) from Warehouse 
Direct Office Interiors.  
 
Budget / Finance:  Funding is budgeted and available in the approved FY23 Budget; Municipal 
Buildings Fund.   
 

Budget Available 90,000 
Purchase Amount 39,000 
Difference – Under Budget $51,000 

 
Staff Direction Request: 

1. Approve purchase order through the OMNIA Partners Cooperative contract from 
Warehouse Direct Office Interiors, of IL for new office furniture as estimated in the amount 
of $39,000. 

2. Direct staff as necessary.  
 

Interoffice   

Memo 



 

 
 
 
Date:        August 16, 2022 

To:  Village Board 

From: Pat Carr, Village Manager 

Subject: Air Mobility Demonstration MOU 

 

The village manager seeks approval to execute a memorandum of understanding with EVE Air 

Mobility based in Brazil.  EVE Air Mobility is one many companies that are designing Electric 

Vertical Take Off and Land (eVTOL) vehicles.  These electric air vehicles are in the process of FAA 

approval by 2024 and air taxi operations by 2026.  This 2 week demonstration will utilize 

helicopters conducting operations from the Tinley Park Helipad (TF8) to assess air taxi services 

from suburban locations to the City of Chicago. There is no exchange of funds for this 

demonstration project.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Interoffice   

Memo 



 

 
 
 
Date:   August 8, 2022 
 
To: Village Board of Trustees 
   
From: Kristin Thirion 
 
Subject: Proposed Ordinance Amending Title II, Chapter 32: Residency Requirements of 

Commissioners and Committee Members 
 
 
The proposed amendment specifies that members of the Civil Service Commission, Economic and 
Commercial Commission, Plan Commission, and the Zoning Board of Appeals must be residents of 
the Village of Tinley Park.  Current, non-resident Commissioners serving in one of the aforementioned 
Commissions will be permitted to continue serving until (1.) he or she is not re-appointed or (2.) he or 
she resigns. 
 
Additionally, the proposed amendment requires that Commission and Committee Chairs must be 
residents of the Village, with the exception of the Advisory Commission on Labor and Development, 
the Environmental Enhancement Commission, and the Sister Cities Commission. 

Interoffice   

Memo 

































 

 

PUBLIC 
COMMENT 

 



 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 


	081622 Cow Agenda
	ITEM #2 - ROLL CALL
	ITEM #3 - 080322 COW Minutes
	ITEM #4 - Video Gaming - Number of Terminals (Truck Stops)
	ITEM #5 - Village of Romeoville Fire Academy IGA
	ITEM #6 - Recapture Ordinance
	ITEM #7 -  Village Infrastructure Standards
	ITEM #8 - 2022 Municipal Parking Lot Improvements
	ITEM #9 - PW Roof Replacement
	ITEM #10 - FS 48 Roof Replacement
	ITEM #11 - Streambank Final Payout
	ITEM #12 - LED Lighting Phase 6
	ITEM #13 - PD-PW Furniture
	ITEM #14 - MOU Eve Air Mobility
	ITEM #15 - Commissioner and Committee Member  Residency
	ITEM #16 - NeoGov
	ITEM #17 - Benefits Package
	ITEM #19 - PUBLIC COMMENT
	ADJOURNMENT
	Exhibit 1 Construction Standards.pdf
	Page 1
	Page 2




